Ann Lake Property Owners' Association Annual Meeting Minutes June 17, 2023

- I. Guest Speakers: Two officers from the DNR spoke to the membership about rules for inland lakes in Michigan and specifically Ann Lake. Points that were covered:
- Lake shore animal life laws. Bears are rutting right now and it is possible they will be active during the day.
- Riparians owner rules apply to mooring buoys, swim rafts and docks only.
- Legal tools for riparians cannot be used to restrict navigation.
- Marine law enforcement is delegated to the County Sheriff and the DNR.
- Hunting from State Campground and proximity to homes on the lake.
- Members appreciate the DNR for their attention to our issues.
- The DNR Hot Line is the best way to reach them.
- Loon buoys are place to advise public there are loons nesting. There is no legal distance to stay away from the nest. It is against the law to harass the loons.
- We were reminded about water safety practices such as the need for navigation lights, PFDs, a flashlight for twilight kayaking.

II. Guest Speakers: Original officers of first ALPOA Board of Directors. Lee Meuhlmann- President, Dianne Minicucci- Secretary, Carol Polisse-Treasurer Mike Khouri- Vice President was not able to attend.

We are celebrating ALPOA's 25th Anniversary this year. These folks are here to talk about those early days.

- Desire to share the lake for multiple recreational purposes, concern about health of the lake. There was a general lack of knowledge about boating regulations.
- There was a need to represent riparians to the township.
- Goals were established, we became incorporated, started to work with the DNR on boating regulations. He emphasized that ALPOA did not write nor do we enforce boating regulations. This is the responsibility of the DNR.
- We started testing the water for clarity.
- For the future he hopes we continue to encourage a healthy greenbelt.
- Our efforts impact the quality of the lake which in turn impacts property values.

III. Call to Order: 11:00 AM **IV. Roll Call of Officers and Board:**

Kathy Garmes Taylor	Present
Kent Taylor	Present
Dave Maxson	Present
Maggie Sowers	Present
Val Dahlberg	Present
Jeff Dahlberg	Present
Terry Sowers	Present
Vacant	
Vacant	
Guests and Members	35
	Kent Taylor Dave Maxson Maggie Sowers Val Dahlberg Jeff Dahlberg Terry Sowers Vacant Vacant

V. Approval of Minutes from last meeting: Approved via email unanimously VI. Report of Officers:

President: No report.

Vice President: No report.

Treasurer: This year began with a \$5000 balance with a surplus of over \$1600. He predicts this will be a good year and may be able to move some money into reserves.

Secretary: No report.

V. Report of Standing Committees: Communications:

Government: No chair, no report.

Nominating and Membership: Jeff and Dave. We have three vacancies on the board. Nominations are as follows:

Maggie abbreviated term to replace Jeff Dahlberg (if he is elected president) Kathy abbreviated term will replace Sven. There are three new volunteers, Darryl Perry, Randy Davis and Aaron Jenkins. These are the nominations for 3 year term Members at Large. There are no additional nominations from the floor. For officers the following are nominated. Jeff Dahlberg as President, Kent Taylor as Vice President and Val Dahlberg as Secretary. **Motion to nominate all vacant positions as proposed by Jeff, seconded by Kathy. Unanimously approved.**

Jeff and Dave are talking about a membership drive. There are 201 households around the lake and our membership is at about 78.

Events: Maggie: Thank you for coming. This is our Annual Meeting and there are about 35 people here today. The next event is the boat parade on the

4th of July. The ALPOA Boat decorating contest theme is Americana. Prizes have been donated by several local businesses- Lake Ann Brewery, Papa J's, Stone Oven, The Bread Lady.

Val: Lake Ann Homecoming Days held on July 15. We will have a booth where our volunteers will be talking about ALPOA and the work we do. Hope to see you there.

Newsletter: Val: We mailed 103 hard copies and 137 email copies. If you didn't get a newsletter this year please see Val.

Website: Kathy: Please send your comments to the email addresses on the home page. We want to hear from you.

Environmental:

Invasive Species: Kent. Lake survey done by PLM found no invasive in 2022. Its unlikely to stay that way, but it is good news for now. Wash your boats! We have agreed on a new 5 year contract with PLM and Almira Township with pricing that will not change for the next two years. Donations to the Lake Preservation Fund have been able to pay our 1/2 of this annual expense without using any general funds. The township pays the other half. In the past we have eradicated purple loosestrife with the unbelievable cooperation from our lake shore owners and volunteers.

Loons: Kathy: We have two chicks this year who are 10 days old. Loon chicks are diving! We have two eaglets in the nest at the mouth of Mud Bay.

Water Quality: Dave: The report is in the newsletter. We have been monitoring clarity, dissolved oxygen, chlorophyll and phosphorus for 25 years. Nutrients are trending upwards and clarity is trending downward. We can help control this by preventing run off into the lake from the land. This is done with a proper Greenbelt. Local zoning regulations define this as a 25 foot barrier of vegetation extending from the waters edge and back. A manicured lawn is not considered green belt.

A lengthy discussion followed about lake preservation in general. It was suggested we prepare a welcome packet for new owners with all the good practices and zoning regulations that protect Ann Lake. **The Greenbelt of the Year 2023 Award was awarded to Lee Meulhmann**. Each year ALPOA volunteers motor around the lake and determine which property meets the Greenbelt

VI. New Business: Val gave a power point presentation outlining the new by laws with discussion to follow.

- Bylaws have not been reviewed since 2015. A committee of 5 board members met several times throughout the fall of 2022. We sent required notification to members throughout the last 9 months.
- We are trying to position ourselves towards a 501c3 status. We are currently a 501c4.
- This will allow us to write for grants, if available, to fund invasive species eradication.
- To be a 501c3 our membership must be open to non-riparians. We established an associate membership that is non-riparian and non-voting. Dues for that level is 50% of riparian membership.
- Today we will vote on the changes.

Motion to adopt the new by laws as presented on the ALPOA web site was made by Val Dahlberg. Seconded by Kathy Garmes. (See below)

Discussion followed

- Caution that non-riparians can influence the riparians and sway decisions toward their own goals. Not the goals of the riparian member.
- Grants are few and exclusive to eradication not prevention. But, if we don't apply for grant money we will not get it. Should we get an invasive problem grant money would help defray to expense of treatment.
- A 501c4 is a limited group exclusive to certain members. There are no tax benefits for donors. A 501c3 is open to all, benefits all not just a few, has tax deductible status for donors.
- We are not applying for 501c3 status at this time, just positioning ourselves to do so. Which is the main reason for the bylaw changes.

Vote called for the above motion. New by laws were adopted by 2/3 vote of the membership (34 yes, 1 no).

VII. Meeting Adjourned: 11:56 AM.

Respectfully submitted,

Maggie Sowers, Secretary

CURRENT BY LAWS FOR ANN LAKE PROPERTY OWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC. August 16, 2009, revised 2010, revised 2015

June 17, 2023, revised: Articles II through XII

ARTICLE I NAME AND ORGANIZATION

Section 1 This organization shall be known as Ann Lake Property Owners' Association, Inc., a non-profit corporation of Almira Township, Benzie County, Michigan.

Section 2 The fiscal year of this Association shall be January 1 to December 31.

ARTICLE II PURPOSES

Section 1 This Association shall promote the education of riparian property owners and other lake users about water quality and water safety.

Section 2 This Association shall support issues which concern the welfare of the lake in general, including the conservation of the water supply in the lake and watershed, the maintenance of the quality of water safe for swimming and conducive to the renewal of the fish resources.

Section 3 This Association shall support the measurement and evaluation of hydrological data of the lake so that decisions and actions of the Association shall be in line with what is best for the lake.

Section 4 This Association shall promote the best interests of the membership in fiscal and civic matters.

Section 5 This Association shall work to preserve Ann Lake as a natural resource and recreational area through protection and prudent use of its environs.

Section 6 This Association may acquire, own, dispose of and deal with real and personal property and interest in real and personal property, and may apply gifts, grants, bequests, and devises and their proceeds to promote the purposes of the Corporation.

Section 7 This Association may carry on only those activities which are permitted to be carried on by a non-profit corporation under the Michigan Non-Profit Corporation Act, as amended.

ARTICLE III MEMBERSHIP

Section 1 The term "member" is defined as a household unit (household defined as any person, group of people, or a trust owning a property).

Section 2 Voting Members in the Association shall be limited to riparian property owners and persons who own property with deeded, legal access to the lake. A person who has contracted to purchase property with legal access to the lake shall be eligible to vote. Each voting member shall be equally privileged with all other voting members in his/ her voice and vote upon any policy or proposition presented for discussion or decision at any meeting of the membership.

Section 3 An Associate Member shall be a non-voting member who has an interest in the stated purposes of the organization. These could be, but are not limited to, a business, friends of the lake, and/or renters who have an interest in Ann Lake. Dues for an Associate Member shall be 50% of Voting Members dues. An Associate Member shall not be eligible for election to the Board of Directors.

Section 4 Dues shall be recommended by the Board of Directors and approved by the voting membership. The annual dues must be paid to the Treasurer by the date of the annual meeting to be eligible to vote.

Section 5 The membership year is from January 1 through December 31 of each calendar year.

Section 6 Any member who shall reflect discredit upon this Association may be removed from membership by a 2/3 vote of the Association's

Board of Directors. A dated written notice of potential removal shall be mailed to the Member 30 days prior to any action taken by the Board. A hearing before the Board shall be provided if requested by the affected member. The request for a hearing should be sent in writing, to the Association Secretary within 15 days from the date of the written notice.

Section 7 Withdrawal from membership in the Association shall be by written notice to or from the Secretary of the Association.

ARTICLE IV VOTING

Section 1 For purposes of voting, the individuals whose names are recorded on the deed shall be entitled to one vote per household. Votes shall be carried by a simple majority of the active voting members either present or voting by proxy.

Section 2 A referendum vote by mail may be called by the President, any two Directors, or any twenty active members if there is any question as to adequate preparation, adequate notice, or whether the vote was representative of the full membership.

ARTICLE V ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS

Section 1 "Electronic transmission" or "electronically transmitted" is defined as any form of communication that meets all of the following: (a) It does not involve the physical transmission of paper; (b) It creates a record that may be retained and retrieved by the recipient; (c) It may be directly reproduced in paper form by the recipient through an automated process.

ARTICLE VI BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1 Board of Directors are elected by the voting Members of the Association. The Board of Directors shall consist of the President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer, and up to 5 Members-at-large.

Section 2 Members-at-large shall serve for a term of three years. Terms of service will be staggered so that no more than two full-term Members-at-large are elected in any given year. Terms begin on January 1 following their election.

Section 3 The Board of Directors shall serve as the executive and policy-making authority of the Association.

Section 4 Directors not physically present at a meeting or discussion may participate by means of remote communication and are considered present in person and can vote if all of the following are met: (a) The corporation implements reasonable measures to verify that each person considered present and permitted to vote at the meeting by means of remote communication is a Director; (b) The corporation implements reasonable measures to provide each Director a reasonable opportunity to participate in the meeting and to vote on matters submitted to the members, including an opportunity to read or hear the proceedings of the meeting substantially and concurrently with the proceedings; (c) If a Director votes or takes other action at the meeting by means of remote communication, a record of the vote or other action is maintained by the corporation.

Section 5 A quorum shall consist of a simple majority of the officers and other Directors.

ARTICLE VII OFFICERS

Section 1 The President shall be elected annually for a term of one year and may be reelected to succeed themself. The President shall have served on the Board of Directors prior to nomination. The President shall preside at meetings of the Association and of the Board of Directors and shall cast the deciding vote in case of a tie.

Section 2 The Vice-President shall be elected annually for a term of one year and may be reelected to succeed themself. The Vice President shall assist the President in the performance of the President's duties. In the absence of the President, the Vice President shall preside at the meetings of the Association and perform all other duties of the President.

Section 3 In case of death or resignation of the President, the Vice President shall at once assume the President's title and duties. The vacancy in the office of the Vice President shall be filled by a majority vote of the Board of Directors. In case of death or resignation of any

other officer, the office shall be immediately filled by appointment by the President with a majority of the members of the Board concurring.

Section 4 The Secretary shall be elected for a term of three years and may be elected to succeed themself. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings and maintain a clear record of the historical and current proceedings of the Association and Board of Directors. The Secretary shall register voting members immediately prior to any regular or special meeting.

Section 5 The Treasurer shall be elected for a term of three years and may be elected to succeed themself. The Treasurer shall make a report of the Association's financial status at each meeting of the Association and of the Board of Directors. The Treasurer shall prepare a written statement annually that will be available to the membership at the Annual Meeting and again at the end of the fiscal year. All monies paid to the Association shall be deposited by the Treasurer in the bank account of the Association. The financial records of the Association shall be reviewed and reconciled with bank statements by a person independent of the Treasurer within 30 days of the

end of the fiscal year. The Treasurer shall propose an annual budget by the first Board of Director's meeting of each fiscal year. The Treasurer ensures that all taxes and government reports are prepared and filed in a timely manner. No two persons shall both be authorized to sign on deposit accounts, or otherwise have disposition of any assets owned by the association if they occupy the same residence or are otherwise related.

Section 6 The officers shall serve without compensation.

Section 7 Any officer or director becoming ineligible for voting membership in the Association shall automatically forfeit the office, and such vacancy shall be filled in the same procedure as stated in Article VII, Section 3.

ARTICLE VIII COMMITTEES

Section 1 Committees shall be formed as needed by determination of the Board of Directors. Committees shall include at least one Board member. Voting and Associate Members shall be allowed to serve on Committees.

Section 2 The Nominating Committee shall consist of a minimum of a Board member and at least one Voting Member of the Association who is not currently serving on the Board of Directors. The Committee shall be elected by a majority vote of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IX MEETINGS

Section 1 The Association's Annual Meeting shall be held on a Saturday in June each year and due notice sent to each member.

Section 2 A special meeting of the membership may be called at the option of the President or when requested by any two members of the Board. Every member shall be notified of such a meeting by regular United States mail or e-mail at least 14 days prior to the time of the meeting.

Section 3 A quorum of the Association shall be no less than 10 percent of the entire Membership. Voting members shall register with the Secretary or designee of the Association immediately prior to any regular or special meeting.

ARTICLE X ORDER OF BUSINESS

Section 1 All meetings of the Association and the Board of Directors shall be as follows:

- 1. Call to Order
- 2. Roll call of Officers 3. Approval of Minutes 4. Report of Officers
- 5. Report of Committees
- 6. Unfinished Business 7. Elections
- 8. New Business
- 9. Adjournment

ARTICLE XI PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

Section 1 The rules contained in the current edition of ROBERT'S RULES OF ORDER NEWLY REVISED shall govern the Association in all cases to which they are applicable and in

which they are not inconsistent with these Bylaws and any special rules or order the Association may adopt.

ARTICLE XII AMENDMENTS

Section 1 The Bylaws may be amended at any regular or properly called special meeting of the Association by a 2/3 vote of Voting members present.

Section 2 Members shall be notified in writing or electronic transmissions of proposed Bylaw changes at least 30 days prior to the meeting called to consider revision of the Bylaws and receive notices of changes enacted.

These amended BY-LAWS are effective as of the June 17, 2023 Annual Meeting